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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Carlton is situated in a commanding position on a steep hill over-
looking the towns of Falmouth and Fredericksburg. The main body of the
frame, two-story Georgian-style house measures approximately 48'X 26' with
a narrow shed addition on the north end. Covering the house is a hipped
roof with three old-fashioned lightening rods along the ridge. Around the
eaves is a simple cornice. At either end of the house is an interior-end
brick chimney. The south chimney is laid in three-course American bond and
is an early nineteenth-century replacement of the original. The chimney
projects two feet into the interior and forms a chimney breast where the
wall was formerly unbroken. The north chimney is laid in Flemish bond with
random glazed headers. The base is obscured by the shed addition; and the
cap is a replacement, set off center.

The house was built with identical five-bay facades with the outer bays
grouped as pairs and the center bays isolated. Most of the nine-over-nine
first-floor sash and nine-over-six second-floor windows retain the original
surrounds, glazing bars and early glass. All the windows are hung with dark
green louvred shutters. The west entrance has an eight-light transom and a
pair of two-panel doors hung on large H-and-L hinges. Surrounding the west
doorway is a pedimented frontispiece with fluted pilasters, probably a later
addition. Sheltering the doorway is a somewhat crude circa 1900 porch with
exposed rafter ends and fluted columns. The east doorway has a transom

similar to that on the west, but no frontispiece and no porch. Both entrances

are approached by plain steps of local stone.

Carlton's foundation is whitewashed random rubble stone. The original
basement windows with vertical grilles and horizontal iron bars survive.

Also intact is much of the early beaded siding and rose-headed nails. The
siding on the first floor of the south end is patched and indicates the
removal of narrow windows on either side of the chimney.

Carlton's first floor plan consists of a central hall, a large parlor
on the south, and two rooms on the north. The hall is divided in the center
by a temporary partition which forms a sitting room in the east end. An
interesting open-string stair with scrolled brackets, molded handrail, and
thin bulbous balusters ascends on the east wall of the hall. A curious
vertical scroll supported on a tapered column newell terminates the handrail,
The stair has a paneled spandrel with applied panel molds. Surrounding the
hall is a dentil cornice.

The parlor features a dentil cornice, chair rail, plain wainscoting,
and baseboard. The simple federal mantel and projecting chimney breast date
from the rebuilding of the chimney. The dining room in the northeast corner
of the house features a corner fireplace with a mantel that has a deep panel
separating the fireplace opening from the molded cornice shelf. Surrounding
the dining room is a cornice with Wall-of~Troy fret, plain wainscoting, and
baseboard. Most of the north wall is taken up by a fine four-section built-
in press. Separating each section in the press's upper part are fluted
pilasters. The glass panes in the two outer sections have recently been
replaced with raised wooden panels. Each of the doors in the lower part has
a single raised panel.

The first floor northwest room is now used as a kitchen. Ascending in
the southeast corner of the room is a secondary stair. The stair is enclosed
except for the bottom four steps. These steps are treated with a simple
molded handrail, turned balusters and chamfered newell. Only one baluster

per step remains, however, The shed addition on the north wall originally |
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functioned as a service pantry but is now used as an informal sitting room.
The trim on the second floor is similar to that on the first but more plain.

Carlton preserves three of its original outbuildings located in a complex
just to the north of the house. The 16'X 32' frame kitchen has lost its
chimney stack, but the large double-hearth stone center fireplace is intact.
The kitchen's west section has been converted into a garage. To the east of
the kitchen is a frame dairy with a steep gable roof. The dairy is in need
of repair but preserves its early siding and batten door with strap hinges.
To the west is a brick meathouse also with a gable roof. The original stable
burned several years ago.

The house is approached from the west along a lane leading up from U.S.
17. The grounds on the west side are informally planted with shade trees and
shrubbery. On the east side is a steeply terraced lawn, bordered at the bottdgm
by thick undergrowth. Immediately to the north and south are steep wooded
slopes. Both house and grounds are maintained in good condition. There is a
family cemetery on the property.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE
Carlton occupies a prominent position overlooking the once prosperous

seaport of Falmouth. The imposing Georgian house is one of several that
crown the wooded hills around Falmouth and adjacent Fredericksburg, pro-
viding a scenic setting for these historic communities. Architecturally
important for its excellent proportions and little~altered state, the house,
in addition, preserves two distinctive interior features: a fine four-sectiof
built-in cupboard and a curious vertical scroll terminating the main stair
handrail. Three of the estate's original outbuildings survive.

The house was erected in the fourth quarter of the eighteenth century
for John Short (1763-1794), third and youngest child of John Short and
Theodosia Mathews of Belmount, Stafford County. Because of the loss of
Stafford County records the exact construction date has not been determined,
but the house is believed to have been built not long after Short's marriage
around 178y to Judith Ball of Cobham Hall, Lancaster County. Short had
acquired the Carlton property from William Richards and Ann, his wife, of
Stafford County. A prosperous Falmouth merchant as well as landowner,

Short made at least one business trip to London. A well-founded family
tradition relates that while there he purchased fine furniture for his new
house. Upon Short's death at the young age of thirty, Carlton was inherited
by his widow. His other holdings in Falmouth and Stafford, King George, and
Frederick Counties were divided amoung his daughters. Judith Short left
Carlton to her daughter Elizabeth, wife of the Reverend Cumberland George of
Bell Park, Culpeper County. In 1837, Mr. and Mrs. George sold the property
to John M. O'Bannon. Carlton remained in the O'Bannon family until 1941
when it was acquired by the present owners, Dr. and Mrs. E. Boyd Graves. The
fifteen acres surrounding Carleton at the house itself are now protected by
an open-space easement granted he Landmarks Commission by the Graves.
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